Public Document Pack

CORPORATE PARENTING SUB OVERVIEW AND
SCRUTINY COMMITTEE AGENDA
Monday, 9 October 2017 at 4.30 pm in the Bridges Room - Civic Centre
From the Chief Executive, Sheena Ramsey
Item Business
1

Apologies

2

Minutes (Pages 3 - 6)
The Committee is asked to approve as a correct record the minutes of the last meeting
held on 10 July 2017

3

Young Peoples Presentation - Digital Me Project
Presentation

4

Performance Overview (Pages 7 - 24)
Report of Strategic Director, Care Wellbeing and Learning

5

Support for Care Leavers (Pages 25 - 34)
Report of Strategic Director, Care Wellbeing and Learning

6

Work Programme (Pages 35 - 38)
Joint Report of the Chief Executive and Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance

7

Exclusion of Press and Public

The Committee may wish to pass a resolution to exclude the press and public from the
meeting during consideration of the following item on the grounds indicated:
Item

8

Paragraphs of Schedule 12A to the Local
Government Act 1972
1

8

Regulation 44 Report (Pages 39 - 44)
Report of Strategic Director, Care Wellbeing and Learning

Contact: Rosalyn Patterson email: rosalynpatterson@gateshead.gov.uk,
Tel: 0191 433 2088, Date: Friday, 29 September 2017

Agenda Item 2
GATESHEAD METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL
CORPORATE PARENTING SUB OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
MEETING
Monday, 10 July 2017

PRESENT:

Councillor B Oliphant (Chair)
Councillor(s): J Adams and M Hall

CO-OPTED MEMBERS

CP1

Jeremy Cripps

APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Cllr Clelland, Cllr S Craig, Cllr McMaster and Cllr
Simcox.

CP2

MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 20 March 2017 were agreed as a correct record.

CP3

CONSTITUTION
RESOLVED -

CP4

That the Constitution of the Committee and the appointment of
the Chair and Vice Chair as approved by the Council for the
current municipal year be noted.

SEN AND LAC
The Committee received a report providing an update on SEND pupils in care of the
local authority.
The report covered provision and activities undertaken to support children and
included detailed information on:




Progress of SEND LAC
Type of support available from the service
Current challenges for SEND LAC and REALAC team

The Committee were advised, as of July 2016 there were 244 LAC. In Gateshead
there were 97 SEND pupils of whom 53 had Education Health Care (EHC) Plans or
Statements. This is 22% of the LAC number of pupils. There were 44 pupils
receiving SEND support therefore 18% of the LAC pupils. Overall 97 were SEND
LAC which is 40% of pupils.
Of the 53 pupils with Plans for SEND, the largest area is Social, Emotional, Mental

Page 3

Health (SEMH) with 23 pupils, with relatively small numbers in other areas.
SEND LAC Progress on Key Stage 1, Key Stage 2 and Key Stage 4 were reported
to Committee.
The Committee were updated on the challenges currently facing the team:There are a significantly increasing number of permanent exclusions from
Gateshead schools. This is impacting on the need to intervene with schools to
prevent permanent exclusions. This has predominantly taken most of the teams
support time over the last three terms. Mostly arrangements are made that maintain
pupils in school by managing moves through the Fair Access system, however, in
primary and secondary schools there are a growing number of pupils the schools will
not accommodate because of their behaviour that are on shared place
arrangements with alternative programmes. The pupil BSS was full this year which
meant it was extremely difficult to find provision for the LAC SEMH pupils.
Those pupils with SEND EHC plans that are now on the LA complex needs list
where special schools out of borough don’t maintain them because of their SEMH
and they lose their school place.
Schools that have left it too late to identify a special educational need for SEMH and
wish to permanently exclude, particularly younger pupils in KS1 and KS2.
RESOLVED CP5

that the information be noted.

FOSTERING SERVICE ANNUAL REPORT
The Committee received the annual report for April 2016 – March 2017 which
provided an update on Gateshead’s Fostering Service, highlighting the progress
made over the last 12 months and the plan for developing the service.
In April 2011 the Government published new National Minimum Standards and
Regulations for Fostering Services in England. Whilst there is no requirement under
the regulations for the executive side of the local authority to receive written reports
on the performance of its fostering service, it is deemed good practice to produce an
annual report in order to monitor the management and outcomes of the Service and
ensure that the agency is effective and achieving good outcomes for the children in
its care.
RESOLVED – that the information be noted.

CP6

SUPPORT FOR DISABLED LAC
The Committee received a report outlining the Council’s provision made to support
disabled Looked After Children. This includes arrangements made for children
accommodated under Care Orders (S31), those placed in voluntary care (S20) or
those accommodated for an agreed series of short term breaks (S20).
The Committee were also advised that everything that can be done is being done in

Page 4

order to ensure that Grove House remains open and providing the invaluable service
it does.
RESOLVED – that the information be noted.
CP7

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC
RESOLVED -

CP8

That the press and public be excluded from the meeting during
consideration of the remaining business in accordance with the
indicated paragraphs of Schedule 12A to the Local Government
Act 1972.

REGULATION 44 REPORT
The Committee received a report on the Ofsted inspection outcomes and regulation
44 independent visits carried out in the Council’s children’s homes. The reports
written as a result of the visits are circulated to the Service Director, Social Work,
Care Wellbeing and Learning, Service Manager for Looked After Children and the
Registered Manager of each home.
RESOLVED - that the information be noted.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
CORPORATE PARENTING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
9 October 2017
TITLE OF REPORT:

Looked After Children Performance Overview

REPORT OF:

Strategic Director, Care Wellbeing and Learning

1.0

Purpose

1.1

This report provides an update in relation to performance for looked after children’s
services showing comparative data and analysis for 2017/18, and also provides a
snapshot of some of the activities and achievements that our young people have
been involved in more recently.

1.2

Additionally as requested by members, Appendix 2 provides a summary of progress
against the key recommendations and actions that were developed as part of the
post Ofsted LAC Improvement Plan. Appendix 3 provides an update of current
inspection activity in Gateshead in preparation for a potential Joint Targeted Area
Inspection (JTAI) focussing around the theme of Neglect.

1.3

Corporate Parenting Overview and Scrutiny Committee Members are asked to
receive this report for information, and to identify any areas they feel they require
more information about or require further scrutiny.

3.0

Looked after children statistics

Number and rates of LAC
3.1

At 13th September 2017 there were 393 children and young people classed as
being Looked After. Since February 2017, when the figure was 360, we have
experienced an increase of 9.2% in the number of looked after children. 393 equals
a rate per 10,000 of 98.3, which remains higher than the latest published regional
rate of 84 and significantly higher than the latest published national rate of 60 per
10,000. However, it should be noted that these latest published averages are for
2015/16 and we await publication of the latest years data (for 2016/17) by the
Department for Education, which is due at the start of November.

3.2

Local benchmarking undertaken by the North East Regional Performance and Data
Leads in August 2017 suggests the rate of LAC across the North East region is
likely to increase when figures are published, with at least 8 authorities out of 12
noting increases in their LAC numbers of between 2% and 24% between 2015/16
and 2016/17. This also shows Gateshead has not been alone in seeing increased
LAC numbers more recently. With a rate per 10,000 of 98.3, while higher than the
regional average, this would place us 6th highest out 10, between Sunderland and
Darling in the middle of the group (see appendix 1).

3.3

Work is ongoing to understand any increases in the LAC population however
families who have not engaged in current Child Protection plans are seen as factor
and we also continue to see high numbers of Children in Need and Child Protection
cases where children are at risk of significant harm and we are confident the
families involved do meet thresholds for care proceedings.
Page
7
Graph 1 and Table 1 below provide
a representation
of the rate of looked after
children since 2015.

3.4

Chart 1:

Table 1:

Age and Legal status
3.3

The age and gender of looked after children are shown below (chart 2) and the
following is of note:




In the main most age groups have remained broadly similar to previous period,
However, males aged 0-2 have seen an increase of 54.5%, from 22 to 34
And the 15-17 age group has seen the most change, with the number of females noting a
17.8% decrease (45 to 37) and the numbers of males has increasing by 23.5% (51 to 63).

Page 8

Chart 2:

Age of LAC as at 13th September 2017

70

63

60

49

50

44

40
30

37

34
27

27 27

28

Female

28

Male

20
20

9

10
0
0-2

3-5

6-8

9-11

12-14

15-17

3.9

All legal status categories have seen an increase in line with the overall increase in
LAC. Chart 3 shows the majority of our children and young people (219 or 55.7%)
are accommodated under a Full Care Order. There has been a slight increase in
Interim Care Orders, from 35 in February to a current figure of 41, while those
children who are the subject of a Placement Orders remains relatively stable,
currently 33 compared to 31 in February.

3.10

Most notably while previously Gateshead has a seen a decrease in the number of
looked after children accommodated under a Section 20 agreement; more recently
the number has increased by 20.5% (83 to 100) since February.

Chart 3:

Legal status of LAC as at 13th September 2017
Accomm under S20

41

219
Interim Care Order

100

Full Care Order

33

Placement Order

Page 9

Chart 4:

Stability of LAC placements
3.11

Research shows the importance of the stability of young people’s placements as
important in ensuring they have positive outcomes. Overall performance in relation
to affording young people stability remains good and has been for some time (Chart
5 and Table 2). At the end of August 2017, there were only 5 out of 391 children
looked after who had experienced 3 or more placement moves in the previous 12
months (1.3%). At the same time last year there were 8 out of a total of 376 Looked
after children (2.1%). This compares extremely favourably with the national picture
where around 10% of children have experienced 3 or more placement moves on
average.

Chart 5
Performance Indicator: Percentage of looked after children
with three or more placements during the year
8%
7%
6%
5%
4%
3%
2%
1%
0%
Apr

May

Jun

Jul

Aug

Sep

Oct

Nov

Dec

Jan

Feb

Mar

-1%
4 year average

2017/2018

2013/2014

Page 10

2014/2015

2015/2016

2016/2017

Table 2:
Performance Indicator: Percentage of looked after children with three or more placements during the year
Quarterly Performance
Latest Performance
Indicator Rating
Aug

Target

5.8%

Latest_NI_
062
2017

1.3%

10.0%

4.6%

7.6%

2016

2.1%

10.0%

5.6%

7.0%

2015

3.5%

10.0%

Q1: Apr-Jun

Q2: Jul-Sep

Q3: Oct-Dec Q4: Jan-M ar

2016/2017

1.3%

1.4%

3.5%

2015/2016

1.1%

5.0%

2014/2015

1.7%

3.3%

%

Target met

Chart

Direction

RAG



1.3%
98.7%

Comparator information & variance against comparators

Variance against previous year

Key

Latest England

10.0%

% var latest vs Eng

87.0%

=

% var latest vs 2015

38.1%

▲

▼

Indicates poorer performance

Latest North East

9.0%

% var latest vs NE

85.6%

▲

% var latest vs 2014

62.9%

▲

▲

Indicates better performance

Latest Stat Neighbour

9.5%

% var latest vs SN

86.3%

▲

% var latest vs target

87.0%

▲

=

Indicates similar performance (within 5%)

3.12

A further measure of stability looks at the stability of those children who have been
in long term placements. There were 96 out of 109 children who have been looked
after for over 2 and half years who had been living in the same placement for at
least 2 years (88.1%). At this point last year there were 101 out of 117 children in
the same placement (86.3%). Again these figures compare extremely favourable to
the National average which stands at around 72%.

Chart 6

Performance Indicator: Percentage of looked after children
living continuously in the same placement for 2 years
100%
90%
80%
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
May

Jun

Jul

Aug

4 year average
2015/2016

Sep

Oct

2012/2013
2016/2017

Nov

Dec

Jan

2013/2014
2017/2018

Feb

Mar

2014/2015

Table 3:
Performance Indicator: Percentage of looked after children living continuously in the same placement for 2 years
Quarterly Performance
Latest Performance
Indicator Rating
Aug

Target

88.8%

Latest_NI_
063
2017

88.1%

78.0%

85.3%

86.0%

2016

86.8%

78.0%

80.8%

78.8%

2015

85.3%

78.0%

Q1: Apr-Jun

Q2: Jul-Sep

Q3: Oct-Dec Q4: Jan-M ar

2016/2017

86.4%

87.8%

86.8%

2015/2016

80.0%

81.1%

2014/2015

76.2%

77.2%

%

Target met

88.1%

Chart

Direction

RAG



11.9%

Comparator information & variance against comparators
Latest England

68.0%

% var latest vs Eng

29.6%

Latest North East

72.0%

% var latest vs NE

22.4%

Latest Stat Neighbour

70.4%

% var latest vs SN

25.1%

Variance against previous year
▲

▲

Key

% var latest vs 2015

1.5%

=

▼

Indicates poorer performance

% var latest vs 2014

3.3%

▲

▲

Indicates better performance

▲

=

Indicates similar performance (within 5%)

Page
% var latest
vs target 11
12.9%

Out of borough placements
3.13

164 children and young people, 41.7% of the total number of LAC, are placed out of
Borough. The majority, 127 (77%), are placed in foster care, of those 16 are in
Independent Foster Care placements (chart 7).

Chart 7:

Placement type of LAC placed OOB as at 13th September 2017
Foster placement
77%

Placed for adoption
Residential School
Children's home
Placed with parents
7%

1%

3.14

9%

5%

Other placement Type

1%

For those children placed out of borough the majority of the placements remain
within the region, with only 12 young people placed further afield, 4 of whom are in
placements in Barnet in order to support their Jewish identity (chart 8).

Chart 8:

Out of borough looked after children by authority
Durham

52

Sunderland

29

Newcastle Upon…

28

Northumberland

17

Adoptive…

14

South Tyneside

8

South Lakeland

4

Barnet

4

Stockton

2

Carlisle

2

North Tyneside

1

Doncaster

1

Darlington

1

Cumbria

1
0

10

20

Page 12

30

40

50

60

3.15

There are 16 children placed in Independent Fostering placements, of those;







3.16

7 are in Durham,
3 in Northumberland,
2 in Sunderland,
2 in Newcastle upon Tyne,
1 in North Tyneside and
1 in Stockton.

The number of children in out of borough residential placements is 20; of those:











5 in Newcastle,
4 in South Lakeland,
2 in Sunderland,
2 in Carlisle,
2 in Durham,
1 in Stockton,
1 in Darlington,
1 in Cumbria,
1 in Northumberland and
1 in Doncaster.

LAC reviews
3.17

A total of 434 LAC reviews for 313 eligible LAC have been completed during AprilAugust 2017. Of the 313, 100% have been reviewed within the statutory timescales.

3.18

The quality and degree of the engagement of children and young people in their
review is mixed, for a variety of reasons. A priority for the IRO team is to better
understand the methods by which children engage most effectively with their
reviews and look to improve practice in this area. To this end data has been
gathered regarding participation methods in LAC reviews which is being reviewed
by the service. The use of MOMO has also been identified as a priority to increase
its use in LAC reviews, and the service will be exploring this in the coming months.

Adoption
3.18

During April to August 2017, 11 adoptions took place, of which 5 were within the
best interest date timescale (45.5%). At the same point last year there were 8
adoptions, of which 8 were within time (100%).

3.19

Whilst our timeliness of adoptions figure is below our target, there have been
several factors which have impacted on this. Of the 6 cases that went out of
timescales this year, 4 of those related to 2 sets of 2 sibling groups, and 2 single
children.

3.20

The following summarised the thematic reasons for 6 cases being outside of
timescales:

Page 13



Challenges of placing a sibling group of 2 children separately where it was
concluded that because of both their separate complex individual needs, this was in
their best interest
Challenges around meeting timescales when children needed to be moved out of
the area in order to safeguard them, and a period stability for them was required
Issues around protracted legal proceedings when plans needed to change when
mother became pregnant in order to place siblings together
Challenges of finding an appropriate placement for a child with challenging health
needs





Table 4:

Performance Indicator: Numbers of Adoptions and Special Guardianship Orders
Latest Performance (% of adoptions from leaving care)

Number of Adoptions quarterly performance
Q1: Apr-Jun

Q2: Jul-Sep Q3: Oct-Dec Q4: Jan-M ar

Aug

England

NE

SN

2016/2017

2

12

14

23

2017

16.7%

-

-

-

2015/2016

6

12

19

26

2016

12.4%

15.0%

8.0%

19.0%

2014/2015

7

21

28

34

2015

11.5%

17.0%

19.0%

21.5%

%

Q2: Jul-Sep Q3: Oct-Dec Q4: Jan-M ar

Aug

England

NE

SN

2016/2017

3

12

13

15

2017

3.0%

-

-

-

2015/2016

2

9

11

13

2016

11.5%

12.0%

12.0%

15.2%

2014/2015

3

13

18

20

2015

12.8%

11.0%

13.0%

14.8%

Chart

Direction



16.7%
83.3%

Latest Performance (% of SGOs from leaving care)

Number of SGOs quarterly performance
Q1: Apr-Jun

% of LAC Adopted Indicator Rating

% of LAC subject to SGO Indicator Rating
%

Chart

Direction



3.0%

Chart 9a and 9b
Number of Adoptions
40
30
20
10

0
Apr

May

Jun

3 year average

Jul

Aug

2013/2014

Sep

Oct

2014/2015

Nov
2015/2016

Dec

Jan

2016/2017

Feb

Mar

2017/2018

Number of SGOs
30

20

10

0
Apr

May
3 year average

Jun

Jul
2013/2014

Aug

Sep

Oct

2014/2015
Page
14

Nov
2015/2016

Dec

Jan

2016/2017

Feb

Mar

2017/2018

Care Leavers
3.21

An increasing focus is being placed on care leavers and the responsibility of Local
Authorities to ensure they transition well into adulthood. As a result, we are now
responsible for monitoring young people’s accommodation and work or education
status for young people aged 17,18,19, 20 and 21 years.

Chart 10a
2017/18 Careleavers cohort
Total Females

Chart 10b
2017/18 Careleavers cohort

Number in Suitable Accomm

25

Total Males

Number in Suitable Accomm

25
21

20
20

18

20
16

15
11

19

18

15

4

10

14

16

10
5

15

14

11

5

4
0

0
17

18

19

20

21

20

12
13
10

2
2
17

18

19

20

21

Care Leavers in Suitable Accommodation
3.22





Of the 133 care leavers, 127 (95.4%) were judged to be in suitable accommodation.
The 6 judged to be in unsuitable accommodation were judged based on
Government guidance on unsuitable accommodation which includes:
In custody - We have 4 males in custody
No fixed abode - We have 1 young person who is staying with family and friends
but not on a permanent basis
In hospital - We have 1 female who is in detained under the Mental Health Act

3.23

Without young people leaving care having somewhere appropriate to live, it is
unlikely that care leavers would be able to sustain education, employment or
training. Improving the quality and choice of housing is crucial to improving the
stability and engagement of care leavers in education, employment and training.
The service has worked hard on this and the Care Leavers Accommodation and
Support Panel was established in April 2015 as a joint initiative between Housing
Services and the Looked after Children’s Service.

3.24

The joint vision is that all care leavers are corporately supported in their pathway to
adulthood through provision of suitable accommodation that corresponds with their
needs and wishes. This initiative is proving to be very successful and was
shortlisted for a Local Government Award in March 2017.

3.25

The range and choice of accommodation has increased in recent years and the
service continues to work with housing and commissioning to try and provide an
improved choice of appropriate accommodation and support for care leavers.

Page 15

Care leavers in Education Employment or Training
Chart 11a

Chart 11b
2017/18 Careleavers cohort

2017/18 Careleavers cohort
Total Females

25

Number in EET
20

20

Total Males

25

21

20

18

15

16

14

15

15

Number in EET

12

11
10

10
4

5

8

10

10

19

20

5

7

0

0
17

3.26

18

11

17

21

12

2
1

9

7
18

19

20

21

Out of the 133 care leavers in 2017-2018, 79 (59%) of them were in some form of
education, employment and training with the remaining 54 (41%) not in
employment, education or training. This breaks down further to an engagement
level of 57% of female care leavers and 63% of male care leavers within that
cohort.

Chart 12a

Chart 12b

Forms of EET for all care leavers

Forms of NEET for all care leavers

FT - Training or employment.

42%

FT - Education other than higher…

56%

24%

FT - education (i.e.studies…
PT - training or employment.

NEET - Other

22%

NEET - pregnancy/parenting

22%

NEET - Illness/Disability

22%

8%

PT - Higher education…
0%

5%
10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60%

3.33

Nationally, young people leaving care have significantly poorer outcomes than their
peers in relation to education, training and employment (EET). When young people
enter care, some as late as 13 to 17 years of age, their educational attainment
levels are often well behind those of same age young people in the general
population and therefore when they leave care they need additional support from
the service.

3.34

These young people are monitored closely by the service as we know it is important
for all young people to be in some form of Education, Employment or Training.
Increased partnership working between the Looked After Children & Young People
Service, REALAC, Connexions and the Youth Support Services is allowing
successful targeting of support and options available to care leavers and it is
envisaged this will lead to a reduction in care leavers not engaged in Education,
Employment and Training.
Page 16

4.0

Participation

Digital Me

4.1

Digital Me is a partnership project of Gateshead Council (Chris Hulme and Ednie
Wilson) and Digital Voice for Communities, a Gateshead based community interest
company.

4.2

The Ragdoll Foundation (creators of Rosie and Jim and the Teletubbies) granted
approximately £21,000 to carry out this project. On top of this we gave £6,000 in
kind support and Ednie provided £4000 of funding.

4.3

The project was completed over the summer holidays and twenty-four looked after
children took part. The participants were aged between 6-14 years old. The children
created timelines of their lives, took part in a photography workshop, completed a
creative writing session, drew avatars which would tell their stories, wrote scripts
and recorded their stories and ultimately created digital story books which include
message to professionals and other children.

4.4

As well as five one day workshops the children also spent a full week at the Sage
Gateshead writing and recording songs that share their messages.

4.5

The project was about sharing messages from the children about their experiences.
The final pieces as well as the photography created will be displayed as part of the
Freedom City, our time exhibition at St Marys Heritage Centre in October. The work
will also be used in the training of new foster carers. A screening is being organised
and elements of the project will be shared at the LAC celebration event in
November.

Corporate Parenting Session
4.6

In August young people from One Voice Youth Network delivered a session to all of
the Councils Strategic and Service Director about being a corporate parent. The
session was planned by the young people who ran different activities to get their
messages across about being in care. The directors were asked to write three
actions that their services would deliver about being a good corporate parent.

Mind of My Own Update



273 children and young people registered with their own accounts in MOMO One.
344 statements have been received since we launched the app in September 2015.

Page 17




30 children have submitted a statement through MOMO Express.
32 workers have signed up for a MOMO for Workers account since February.

Advocacy
4.7

Gateshead provides support to children and young people to ensure they have
every opportunity to express their views and have them heard. This can be through
independent advocacy commissioned by the local authority or through our own
children’s rights officer who provides advice and support to young people in a more
informal way.

4.8

Currently there are 24 children/young people accessing our commissioned
independent advocacy service.

Case Study
4.9

Chid A and Child B are siblings who have a long-term plan to be looked after by the
authority. Chris was asked to visit the girls to gather their views about the contact
plan with their family. When Chris visited the two girls had different views and one
was visibly distressed about the current situation. Chris considered the girls views
and discussed their thoughts with members of the care team, including the
Independent Reviewing Officer and the Team Manager. Chris has agreed to
provide ongoing support, to ensure that the siblings are individually supported.

Page 18

Appendix 1:
Regional benchmarking data for rate of LAC 2016/17

Page 19

Appendix 2
Progress on post Ofsted LAC Improvement Plan
1.1

The following provides a summary of progress against the key recommendations
and actions that were developed as part of the post Ofsted LAC Improvement Plan

Recommendation 1: Improve the quality of all children’s plans, including pathway
plans to ensure that targets for improvement are clear and that they focus on risk
and the most important issues for children, young people and care leavers.
1.1

A working party developed new templates for CIN plans and CP plans. Staff were
trained in writing outcome focussed plans to ensure the targets for improvement are
clear and measurable. These documents are now implemented for all CIN, CP
plans and LAC plans.

1.2

The working party are currently developing new Pathway plans, which will go into
test on Carefirst in October 2017. It is envisaged they will go live in December 2017,
which gives the service time to ensure all staff attend training on completing
outcome focussed plans.

Recommendation 2: Ensure that child protection conferences and looked after
reviews are used to drive and progress plans through the use of effective challenge
and robust risk analysis.
2.1

The team attended the training on outcome focussed plans and a new challenge
system is being developed on the Carefirst system to effectively record and monitor
IRO’s use of challenge and the responses to this.

2.2

The new process will enable more effective data to evidence how and why
challenges are made and the effectiveness of the responses. In addition informal
challenges will be captured by a monitoring sheet which will enable team managers
to receive feedback which can be used within supervision/1:1’s with workers to
improve performance.

2.3

Regular interfaces/meetings between IRO’s and TMs are in the process of being
established to enable better communication and improved practice.

Recommendation 3: Improve the attendance of education professionals at all
children and young people’s reviews and meetings, to ensure a robust focus on
their educational outcomes.
3.1

The service has worked hard to ensure that Education professionals’ views are
obtained prior to a review if they are unable to attend or the young person has
asked for specific people to attend their review. These views are recorded and
outcome focussed targets are made at the review and progress is monitored by
care team meetings.

3.2

To gain a better understanding of the impact of venue on attendance, work is
ongoing to capture the attendance of key individuals at LAC meetings and cross
reference this with the data regarding where meetings take place in order to
establish if there are patterns of higher attendance figures depending on the
location of meetings – this information will be used to influence practice and service

Page 20

delivery to ensure key individuals can consistently take an effective role within
young people’s and children reviews.

Recommendation 4: Support care leavers to understand their health histories more
thoroughly and ensure they have regular and timely access to mental health
services.
4.1

The band 6 nurse has been working with the Looked After Team to develop a
robust system to ensure all care leavers receive their health passports. This is now
embedded into the service and is working well. There has also been ongoing
training and support to Personal Advisors to ensure they have relevant information
to give to care leavers regarding health services and how to access them. Drop in’s
for care leavers are also planned on a monthly basis starting in October 2017 which
will also signpost care leavers to relevant services.

4.2

There are still some gaps in provision in relation to accessing mental health support
for care leavers as there are no additional services or fast track referrals for young
adults/care leavers. This has been raised with the CCG and work is ongoing to try
and improve this. All the above areas will be included will be incorporated into the
Corporate Parenting Partnership plan, with the health sub group reporting on
progress on a 3 monthly basis

Recommendation 5: Devise a more effective way of communicating legal
entitlements to all care leavers.
5.1

The Looked After Children’s team have worked closely with the children’s rights
officer to ensure all care leavers are aware of their legal entitlements.

5.2

Information leaflets are given to care leavers as part of their transition from care and
1:1 work is undertaken by the Personal Advisors to ensure all care leavers have the
relevant information.

5.3

The website has been developed so that information is accessible to all care
leavers and the service is also considering purchasing “The Care Leavers' App”,
which has been specifically built for local authorities looking to deliver their care
leavers a tailored, purpose built offer. The App presents information, advice and
guidance to young people using technology they are already using in their day-today life and is designed to guide and assist young people throughout complex
process of leaving care.

Recommendation 6: Establish a protocol with all education and training partners to
ensure that arrangements are in place to provide proactive support for care leavers
to stay on their courses and complete their qualifications.
6.1

A steering group led by the Looked After Children’s Service is working with partners
as part of the Corporate Parenting partnership to try and provide a better offer of
employment, education and training to care leavers. The group are looking at;




Improving the apprenticeship offer
Improving traineeship offer
Improving internship offer

Page 21



6.2

Working cohesively with colleges to ensure they know who our Looked after
Children are and to ensure they receive the correct support

The steering group meets on a bi monthly basis to identify the children needing the
most support, identify who will offer this support and monitor progress.

Recommendation 7: Ensure the adoption panel provides quality assurance
feedback to the agency on the quality of reports being presented to panel and
adoption performance.
7.1

The adoption service has developed a Quality Assurance document to give
feedback on a quarterly basis to the Agency Decision Maker. There is also a regular
meeting with the Adoption Manager, the Adoption Panel Chair and the Agency
Decision Maker to ensure all issues of Quality are raised and addressed.

Page 22

Appendix 3
Ofsted update
Joint Targeted Area Inspection (JTAI) – Neglect 7-15 years
1.0

Introduction

1.1

In April 2017, it was announced by Ofsted that they would undertake six Joint
Targeted Area Inspections (JTAI) between May 2017 and December 2017, with the
two key themes being multiagency response to the “front door and early
intervention” and a “review of cases of children deemed to be at risk under the
category of neglect”, with this inspection concentrating on the age group 7 to 15
years.

1.2

The inspection guidance and the framework for the inspection was issued, with 36
evaluation criteria, specifically looking at how, social care, police, health, probation,
education, children’s MASH, Adult Social Care, Youth offending and community
safety work together. It also would review the working of the LSCB (Local Children’s
Safe Guarding Board) and the review would include discussion with providers and
children and young people and their parents and carers.

1.3

The inspections will be unannounced and will last approximately 3 weeks to
complete, with a report out during that period and a final report would be published
on the Ofsted website after being reviewed by the agencies involved. No grades are
provided as part of the outcome of these inspections, just areas of strength and
areas for improvement identified. Where failings are identified however authorities
are asked to provide a “written statement of action” to address the failings.

1.4

Inspections on this theme to date have been in Wokingham and Peterborough, and
in both cases they have been asked to provide a written statement of action. As of
19th September 2017 no further inspections have been notified, however 4 more are
planned to take place before December 2017.

1.5

While we continue prepare on the basis that we may receive a JTAI on the subject
of Neglect, this is not a certainty.

2.0

Gateshead Profile

2.1

There are approximately 40,000 young people in Gateshead aged 0-18, of which
19,300 are aged 7 to 15 years, of these that are 458 ( current cases open to
Children and Families that are in the risk category of “Neglect”.

3.0

Gateshead Inspection Preparation

3.1

The Commissioning and Quality Assurance Service in the Care, Wellbeing and
Learning Group was asked to review current preparation and undertake actions for
the potential of a JTAI on Neglect.

3.2

An event was delivered at Gateshead Stadium on “Neglect Inspection awareness
and preparation” part of this event included a workshop to start to develop a selfassessment of our current position; this was well attended with over 40 multiagency
attendees.

Page 23

3.3

In addition an Inspection Preparation Group has been established and will report to
Group Management Team, with a purpose to develop a programme of work to be
completed which includes:













Identification of partner leads for inspection (for the current JTAI and beyond).
Develop a multiagency neglect strategy for 2017 to 2020 (early work has begun
and the first draft has been distributed for comments to partners and internally
in Gateshead Council).
Development of a self-assessment across multiagency partners – in response
to the inspection evaluation criteria and learning from the first two inspections,
to establish gaps and to develop an action plan to address these.
To establish the work streams – which will include, review of Permanently
Excluded Pupils, case audits of a sample of LAC and Child Protection Cases
and Disabled Children cases – with findings being received by the Inspection
Group and for onward consideration by the LSCB Performance sub group and
the CYP Strategic Commissioning Group.
Development of a dashboard to summarise the main findings from the likely
inspection cohort of cases i.e. profile of the children, chronology of the cases,
no and type of interventions, multiagency involvement.
Start to review of current practice, policies, governance and strategic overview.
Start to collate key inspection documents which are required to be provided to
inspectors, including workforce details and strategies, LSCB reports and
minutes for the last 12 months, any reference to Neglect within Gateshead
multiagency strategies.
To gather inspection documentation required from partners and to build their
awareness and engagement.

3.4

To date the LSCB commissioned a number of training sessions for all staff on
“Neglect” which are sunning between July and October 2017, with places offered to
all LSCB partners, all these sessions have been oversubscribed and additional
sessions are planned.

3.5

A report has also been received and discussed at Children’s Services General
Managers Team meeting, where oversight of the preparation for this and all future
inspections will be overseen.

Page 24

Agenda Item 5
CORPORATE PARENTING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
9 October 2017

TITLE OF REPORT:

Support to Care Leavers

REPORT OF:

Caroline O’Neill, Strategic Director, Care Wellbeing
and Learning

Summary
1. The purpose of this report is to update the OSC on the provision of support
offered to care leavers and to inform them of the progress and developments
being made by the Looked After Children’s Team.
Background
2. Performance reports have been presented to OSC on a regular basis to
demonstrate how we are meeting our performance targets and how we
compare both regionally and nationally in relation to Looked After Children.
3. An increasing focus is being placed on care leavers and the responsibility of
Local Authorities to ensure they transition well into adulthood. As a result we
are now responsible for monitoring young people aged between 17and 21
years, and need to demonstrate how we are supporting them with
accommodation, work or education and financially.
4. Within Gateshead we have embedded the principles of the care leaver’s
charter. The charter embodies a set of over-arching principles that are
designed to improve the experiences of care leavers throughout preparation,
transition and on their journey into adult life. These include
 Respect us
 Listen to us
 Work with us
 Believe in us
 Hold aspirations for us
 Make sure we have somewhere to call home
 Don’t forget about us
5. The report has therefore focused on
 Support to care leavers
 Accommodation
 Financial support
 How we monitor the work or education status for young people age 17,
18, 19, 20 and 21 years
 Identifying young people needing additional support
 Working with our partners

Page 25

How we monitor the leaving care cohort
6. Information is produced on a monthly basis from Care First and monitored by
performance meetings with the Service Manager and Team Managers. This
enables us to look at statistics and data in relation to our care leavers and to
raise any concerns in relation to changes in data.
Support to Care Leavers
7. All Care Leavers have a Pathway plan, which sets out what they are entitled
to and who will support them. This plan is reviewed every six months to
ensure the care leaver is being supported in their transition from care. Every
care leaver has a personal advisor who keeps in touch with them on a
minimum of an 8 week basis. They communicate by telephone, text, letter and
face to face visits. During these contacts the personal advisor supports them
to achieve the things that are set out in the pathway plan. This could include
 Help with finding employment, education or training
 Help with claiming benefits, housing benefit or council tax
 Support with finding suitable accommodation
 Support with setting up their own home
 Managing finances
 Advising on financial assistance and support in applying for specific
grants
 Health and development
 Independent living skills
 Family and social networks
Accommodation
8. Without young people leaving care having somewhere appropriate to live, it is
unlikely that care leavers would be able to sustain education, employment or
training. Improving the quality and choice of housing is crucial to improving
the stability and engagement of care leavers in education, employment and
training. The service has worked hard on this and the Care Leavers
Accommodation and Support Panel was established in April 2015 as a joint
initiative between Housing Services and the Looked after Children’s Service.
9. The joint vision is that all care leavers are corporately supported in their
pathway to adulthood through provision of suitable accommodation that
corresponds with their needs and wishes.
10. The aim of the Care Leavers Accommodation Panel is to:
 Bring services together to have a joint response to the accommodation
needs of care leavers.
 To enable care leavers to make smooth transitions by promoting
positive rather than reactive planning.
 To provide a range of accommodation with tenancy ready work suitable
to the diverse needs of care leavers at different stages in the leaving
care process and to give access to independent tenancies when
required.

Page 26





To recognize that the pathway to independent living for some care
leavers may be complex and to acknowledge that some care leavers
may require a second or third chance at independent living and to
support.
To ensure all young people leaving care have safe, permanent and
affordable accommodation

11. This initiative is proving to be very successful and was shortlisted for a Local
Government Award in March 2017.
12. The service recognizes that there needs to be a range of suitable
accommodation for
Care leavers, which include:
 Staying Put with their foster carers. This can be until they are 21 if the
young person feels this is their best option
 Supported accommodation
 Own tenancies
 Individual tailored packages for children with additional/complex needs.
13. The range and choice of accommodation has increased in recent years and
the service continues to work with housing and commissioning to try and
provide an improved choice of appropriate accommodation and support for
care leavers.
14. The need for additional and specialist provision for care leavers has also been
embedded into the strategic plan from the vulnerable young peoples housing
group and services across the council are working together to ensure that the
housing and supported accommodation options are improved for care leavers.

Accommodation Data for 2017-18 Care Leaver Cohort

Page 27

Number
Total
in
% in
Females Suitable Suitable
Accomm

Total
Males

Number
in
% in
Suitable Suitable
Accomm

17

4

4

100%

17

2

2

18

11

11

100%

18

14

14

19

20

19

95%

19

21

20

20

18

18

100%

20

12

10

21

16

16

100%

21

15

13

Total

69

68

99%

Total

64

59

100%
100%
95%
83%
87%
92%

15. These statistics are measured in line with Government Guidance on
unsuitable accommodation which includes
 Custody - we have 4 males in custody
 No fixed abode. We have 1 young person who is staying with family
and friends but not on a permanent basis
 1 female who is in detained in hospital under the mental health act
Financial Support
16. Gateshead Leaving Care Service has comprehensive financial procedures in
place to support care leavers. The focal point of the financial support is to
assist care leavers who are combining having to live independently with either
being employed or in training, which includes
 Weekly living allowance of £60 per week where benefits are not in
place or the young person is not entitled to benefits.

Page 28









Winter fuel allowances are available to young people living in
independent accommodation between the months of November and
March at £20 per month.
Where our Young People who are living semi-independently or
independently and are engaged in Employment, Education or Training,
incentive payments are paid up to £70 per month.
For each young person that completes a year of full-time or equivalent
study, an education bonus of £25 is paid.
Young People in further education will receive up to £6000 per year to
assist with accommodation or education costs.
Young people aged between 16yrs – 19yrs attending training courses
can claim a bursary of £60 per week.
Where our young people are moving into independent accommodation
a setting up home allowance is available up to £2000 to support with
this transition.
The service recognizes the Young Person’s birthday by giving them a
birthday allowance of £20 between the age of 18 to 20 years with a
final birthday payment of £50 at 21 years

17. The Leaving Care Service complies with Children (Leaving Care) Act 2000 in
the financial assistance and support offered to Care Leavers and will support
a young person continuing in a pathway of education and training until their
25th birthday,
Education, employment and training
18. Nationally, young people leaving care have significantly poorer outcomes than
their peers in relation to education, training and employment (EET). When
young people enter care, some as late as 13 to 17 years of age, their
educational attainment levels are often well behind those of same age young
people in the general population and therefore when they Leave Care they
need additional support from the service.

Page 29

19. Out of the 133 care leavers in 2017-2018, 79 (59%) of them were in some
form of Education, Employment and Training with the remaining 54 (41%) not
in employment, education or training. This breaks down further to an
engagement level of 57% of female care leavers and 63% of male care
leavers within that cohort.

EET
PT - Higher education (i.e.studies beyond As/A2s)
PT - training or employment.
FT - education (i.e.studies beyond
As/A2s)
FT - Education other than higher
education
FT - Training or employment.
Grand Total

Page 30

Female
3

Male
1
6

Total
4
6

11

6

17

13

6

19

12
39

21
40

33
79

%
5%
8%
22%
24%
42%
100%

NEET
20. These young people are monitored closely by the service as we know it is
important for all young people to be in some form of Education, Employment
or Training. Increased partnership working between the Looked After Children
& Young People Service, REALAC, Connexions and the Youth Support
Services is allowing successful targeting of support and options available to
care leavers and it is envisaged this will lead to a reduction in care leavers
not engaged in Education, Employment and Training.
2017-18 Care Leaver Cohort

Page 31

21. As you can see from the above graph, Gateshead were above both the North
East and England average for care leaveres who were not in education,
employment and training. With closer monitorong and better partnership
working we are now below the England average and in line with the north east
average
Identifying young people needing additional support
22. The service acknowledges that there has been an issue with young people
leaving care refusing to engage in employment, education and training and
have taken proactive steps to try and improve the statistics and outcomes for
care leavers. The Education, Employment and Training (EET) panel was set
up in 2015 and is chaired by the Looked After Children and Young Peoples
Service. The panel meets on a monthly basis is made up of representatives
from Connexions, REALAC and Local further and Higher Education Providers.
The panel looks at all looked after children and young people from the age of
15 years through to Care Leavers up to the age of 25 years and rate them as
being Red, Amber or Green. The panel identifies gaps in education,
employment and training for the young people that are at risk of becoming
NEET and these young people are rated as red. This ensures that additional
support and resources are identified and plans put in place to support young
people back into EET
23. There are also monthly apprenticeship groups being held discussing the need
for increased apprenticeship provision within the council for LAC and Care
Leavers. A plan from this has been developed which will see an
apprenticeship event for our young people to attend where skills and abilities
will be determined and appropriate pathways developed into both council and
external apprenticeship providers.

Page 32

24. The Service has worked with partners to try and provide a range of support for
the young people who need additional support. This includes:
Building Better Opportunities - Wise Steps – Gary Green, Economic and
Housing Growth
25. The Building Better Opportunities programme – Wise Steps is designed to
support those furthest away from the labour market. It is expected that the
participants will take longer than six months to move into a positive outcome
(education/training, employment and self-sufficient job search).
26. Those young people who are job ready and will move into work quickly are
not eligible for this programme. All young people will receive one to one
support from a job coach for up to 18 months. Together the job search and
the young people will focus on removing any barriers to work through social
inclusion activities, life skills, confidence building and skills development.
Activities will also include ICT training and personal money management.
Once the customer is ready to enter work they will be supported through work
experience, volunteering, job search, vocational training, job brokerage and
in-work support. A wide range of specialist partners are available to support.
REALAC
Pathways 2 Work
27. Voluntary work experience programme for Looked After Young People
between the ages of 15 yrs – 19yrs. The work experience is carried out during
school holidays with expenses of £10 per day paid to the young person.
The aim of this programme is to develop the skills needed for future
employment, help experience the reality of what a particular job will be like
before committing to it. Improve communication skills within an adult
environment and improve your team working skills.
28. REALAC facilitate the Choices program where our young people will get the
chance to explore Newcastle University, Northumbria University, the
University of Sunderland, Durham University and Teesside University and
take part in some activities and working relationships continue to be
developed with further and higher education support services.
Core Assets
29. The Aspiration & Ambition for All (‘Triple A’) programme will increase care
leavers in Employment Education and Training through an innovative and
targeted mix of therapeutic and solution focused mentoring, enhanced by
integrated data informed Careers Education, Information, Advice and
Guidance approaches. A bid is currently in place to get the funding for this
and if successful Gateshead will be the only north east authority to be
involved in this programme. They will work with up to 100 young people and
the intervention will be data and outcome driven to
 identify, target, track and nurture Care leavers and Looked After young
people.
 The young people will be offered voluntary placements/internships,
education/business/training courses opportunities, and expanded
access to apprenticeships/employment opportunities.

Page 33



Additionally, the therapeutic mentoring framework builds upon a
systemic therapy approach.

Programme for Marginalized young people
30. Gateshead College will deliver a comprehensive range of industry related
workshops alongside a Certificate in Occupational Studies for the Workplace,
which will enhance learner skills and knowledge within a range of dynamic
role within industry. Learners will receive guidance and support which will
enhance their opportunity to move into employment.
31. Workshops will prepare learners for the world of work, developing theoretical
and practical skills within hair, beauty, retail, hospitality, painting and
decorating, manufacturing, warehousing, bricklaying, plastering and motor
vehicle. Learners will discover the expectations of employers within a range of
sectors, as well as understand the knowledge and behaviour they will need to
possess in order to gain and sustain employment. There will be an opportunity
to achieve accredited qualifications at level 1 in Health & Safety and
Occupational Studies for the Workplace. An introduction to problem solving
techniques, teamwork skills, effective communication, use of social media in
the workplace and customer service will all be included as part of the
programme.
32. Closer working relationships continue to be developed with further and higher
education support services. The service will continue to develop relationships
and packages of support with a range of providers in order to broaden the
offer to all care leavers.

Issues the OSC might want to consider
33. In light of the information provided the OSC might like to consider whether it is
satisfied with the level of support being offered to Care Leavers. When
addressing this question the OSC might wish to take into account the
following
 Are we working proactively as corporate parents for Care Leavers
 Have we got the right involvement from our partners
 Are we promoting positive outcomes for Care leavers
 Are we offering the right support to the NEET cohort
Recommendations
34. The views of the OSC are sought on: The progress and the level of support Care leavers are receiving in
Gateshead
 Whether it wishes to receive a further report on the support we
offer care leavers

Contact:

Jill Little

ext 3420

Page 34

Agenda Item 6

CORPORATE PARENTING
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
9 October 2017

TITLE OF REPORT:

Annual Work Programme

REPORT OF:

Sheena Ramsey, Chief Executive
Mike Barker, Strategic Director, Corporate Services and
Governance
Summary

The report sets out the provisional work programme for Corporate Parenting Overview and
Scrutiny Committee for the municipal year 2017/18.

1. The Committee’s provisional work programme was endorsed at the meeting held on 20
March 2017 and Councillors have agreed that further reports will be brought to future
meetings to highlight current issues / identify any changes/additions to this programme.
2. Appendix 1 sets out the work programme as it currently stands. Any changes proposed
to the programme will be set out in bold and italics for ease of identification.
Recommendations
3. The Committee is asked to
a) Note the provisional programme;
b) Note that further reports on the work programme will be brought to the Committee
to identify any additional policy issues, which the Committee may be asked to
consider.

Contact:

Angela Frisby

Extension: 2138

Page 35

This page is intentionally left blank

APPENDIX 1
Draft Corporate Parenting OSC 2017/18
10 July 17






SEN and LAC
Fostering Service Annual Report
Support for Disabled LAC
Regulation 44 Report

9 October 17




Young People’s Presentation – Digital Me Project
Performance Overview (incl update on Ofsted – specific LAC
Improvement Plan)
Support for Care Leavers
Work Programme
Regulation 44 Report




15 January 18








26 March 18







Missing from Care Annual Report
Education Annual Report (incl focus on employment / training /
apprenticeships)
Adoption Annual Report 2017
Health of LAC Annual report (incl update on Foetal Alcohol
Syndrome)
Work Programme
Regulation 44 Report
Young People’s presentation
Performance Overview
Case Study – Performance / Planning / Safeguarding of Care
Leavers
Work Programme
Regulation 44 Report

Issues to slot in:

Page 37

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

